
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ADVANCED PUBLICATION OF 
REPORTS 

 
 

This publication gives five clear working days’ notice of the decisions listed below. 
 

These decisions are due to be signed by individual Cabinet Members 
and operational key decision makers. 

 
Once signed all decisions will be published on the Council’s 

Publication of Decisions List. 
 
1. ENFIELD HOUSING DELIVERY ACTION PLAN (2019) (Pages 1 - 30) 
 
2. POLICE S92 CONTRACT (Pages 31 - 42) 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PL 19/048 P 

 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/2020 REPORT NO. 

 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN UNDER 
DELEGATED AUTHORITY  
 

 

PORTFOLIO DECISION OF:  
Councillor Caliskan, Leader of the 
Council   
 
 
 

Contact officer and telephone 
number:  
Neeru Kareer  
Telephone: 0208 3791634 
E-mail: neeru.kareer@enfield.gov.uk  

 

 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

1.1 The Government introduced a new Housing Delivery Test (HDT) in October 
2018 and published the first results of this covering the period 2015-2018 in 
February 2019.  

 
1.2 Based on past three-year performance Enfield achieved an annual delivery 

rate of 85% against a three year target 2355. This triggers the requirement 
to produce a Housing Action Plan that sets out key actions the Council will 
be taking to stimulate housing delivery.  

 

 

2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That the Portfolio holder approve Enfield’s first Housing Delivery Action 

Plan (attached at Appendix 1)  
 

2.2 Delegate to Executive Director of Place any minor alterations to the Plan 
prior to publication.  

 

 

  

Agenda – Part: 1 KD Num: KD4996 

Subject: Enfield Housing Delivery Action 
Plan (2019) 

Wards: ALL 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1

mailto:neeru.kareer@enfield.gov.uk


 

PL 19/048 P 

 

 

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 The Housing Delivery Test (HDT) was introduced in October 2018 by 
Government alongside the publication of the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). The HDT is part of Government’s agenda to speed up 
plan making and housing delivery.  

3.2 The HDT introduces a mechanism for assessing the number of homes built 
against housing need, (adopted targets) and comparing them over the past 
three financial year period (2015-2018).  

3.3 The results of this test fall into different categories, where some form of action 
may be required with 95% constituting the ’pass’ rate.  The Test sets out the 
following:  

1. If delivery falls below 95% there is a requirement to produce a Housing 
Action Plan to assess the causes of under delivery and identify actions 
to increase delivery in future years.  

2. If delivery falls below 85% there is requirement to add a 20% buffer to 
the Council’s five-year land supply of deliverable housing sites (to 
improve the prospect of achieving the planned supply); and  

3. As from 2019, if the test result is less than 45% in 2019, increasing to 
75% from 2020 onwards then the Government has stated a 
‘presumption in favour of sustainable development must be applied 
making it difficult for planning authorities to resist planning applications. 
Essentially this means proposed developments should be granted 
planning permission unless it can be clearly demonstrated: 

(i) policies within the NPPF that protect areas or assets of 
particular importance provide a strong reason for restricting the 
overall scale, type or distribution of development or  

(ii) (ii) the adverse impacts of the development "significantly and 
demonstrably" outweigh their benefits);  

3.4 Enfield achieved a delivery rate of 85% and therefore test 1 applies. The 
Housing Delivery Test will be a key national monitoring tool to incentivise local 
councils to build the homes they need. Importantly, it indicates that the 
Government is not only interested in the future housing plans of local councils 
but also their past housing delivery performance – in understanding the latter, 
the Government is better placed to assess whether the former is sufficient. 

 

  

Page 2



 

PL 19/048 P 

 

Enfield’s Housing Action Plan  

3.5 For Enfield, housing targets are set out in the London Plan (adopted 2016). 
Enfield’s current housing target is 798 homes a year. This target is due to 
increase to 1,876 homes a year once the new Draft London Plan is adopted.  

3.6 Whist the Council does not need to add an additional 20% buffer at this time, 
as a matter of good practice, and a commitment towards housing delivery,  
the Council has been applying a 20% buffer approach to its 5-year housing 
supply set out in our Annual Monitoring Report. 

3.7 The Council’s Annual Monitoring Report and Housing Trajectory  (March 
2019) projects a housing five-year supply of 4,808 new homes, meeting the 
798 target. The target will of course significantly change if the Mayor’s draft 
new London Plan target of 1,876 new homes a year is adopted later this year.   

3.8 To provide some context, Enfield was among 108 other councils who failed to 
achieve the 95% ‘pass rate’ and the table below provides an indication of how 
neighbouring boroughs performed against their targets.  

Table1: Comparison with adjoining boroughs 

Local authority  Target 2015-
2018 

  

Delivery 
Test  

Action  

London borough Barnet  6,547 82% 20% Buffer 

Broxbourne District 1,151 67% 20% Buffer  

London borough Enfield 2,355 85% Action Plan 

London borough Hackney  4,513 82% 20% Buffer  

London borough Haringey 4,506 48% 20% Buffer  

London borough Islington  3,706 71% 20% Buffer  

London borough Redbridge  3,370 38% 20% Buffer  

London borough Waltham Forest  2,391 122% None 

 

3.9 The Housing Action Plan is not a statutory planning document, but rather the 
purpose of having an Action Plan in place should be seen as a proactive 
measure for local authorities to consider what actions can be taken to 
stimulate delivery.  

 

Enfield’s Housing Delivery Action Plan  

3.10 Enfield has an ambitious growth agenda and is committed to accelerating the 
delivery of good quality homes for its residents. The council is responding to 
the growth challenge through this Action Plan and a number of emerging new 
strategic documents, including Enfield’s new Local Plan 2036. The Plan is a 

Page 3



 

PL 19/048 P 

 

good opportunity to bring together all of the projects, programmes and 
initiatives underway in the Council into one document. 

Housing Delivery Board  

3.11 One of the first actions now establishment is an officer level Housing Delivery 
Board (HDB). This brings together senior officer across all service areas 
related housing delivery. The Board has overseen the development of the 
Action Plan.   

3.12 In summary the key actions fall under two main areas: 

1) Process and enabling: Improving our planning application process and 
decision-making function, alongside an effective plan-making role to 
provide a proactive growth strategy and build development and investment 
confidence.  

 Ensuring the speedy delivery of a new Local Plan and Housing & 
Growth Strategy – highlighting the importance of all aspects of the 
Local Plan spatial strategy being delivered, most notably regeneration 
projects in the short term;  

 Building resource and specialist capacity with the Planning Service to 
effectively manage major and strategic planning schemes.  

2) Direct Delivery:  

 Effectively manage the council’s portfolio of land and assets for 
housing development. 

 Support ongoing delivery of council-led housing regeneration and 
estate renewal programme to deliver more homes to Enfield (all types 
and tenures). 

3.13 Progress on delivering the key actions of the Housing Action Plan will be 
monitored annually and reported through the Annual Monitoring Report.  

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

The alternative is not to adopt the Housing Action Plan. The risk with this 
option is that the Council will find it harder to demonstrate its proactive 
approach towards housing delivery and stepping up delivery to the new 
London Plan target of 1,876. This option is not recommended as proactive 
measures are required to ensure positive HDT results.   

5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

The results of the HDT require the Council to produce a HAP to identify the 
challenges and identify actions to help address under-delivery in the borough. 
The need to deliver more and better homes in the borough is a corporate 
priority and the Action Plan will allow the Council to monitor its performance 
across key service areas responsible for housing delivery.   

  

Page 4



 

PL 19/048 P 

 

 

6. COMMENTS FROM OTHER DEPARTMENTS 

6.1 Financial Implications  

6.1.1 Upon adoption of the Housing Action Plan officer’s time will be required to 
implement the document, including delivery and monitoring of the actions 
as well as the publication of the document on the website. Associated staff 
time and costs will be managed within the current service and existing 
budgets. 

6.1.2 Any costs resulting from the delivery of the Housing Action Plan will be 
funded from existing service and budgets. This includes any annual 
updates in line with national planning policy as outlined in NPPF and 
Planning Practice Guidance.  

6.1.3 The assumption is that the HAP would enable the delivery of Government 
housing targets each year, which would generate additional income to the 
Council through Council Tax receipts. At present, there are no financial 
penalties for non-delivery of Government housing targets but there would 
have consequential costs if planning sanctions are imposed on the 
Council.  

6.2 Legal Implications (DRAFT)  

6.2.1 Paragraph 75 of the NPPF (2019) provides that “where the Housing Delivery 
Test indicates that delivery has fallen below 95% of the local planning 
authority’s housing requirement over the previous three years, the authority 
should prepare an action plan in line with national planning guidance, to 
assess the causes of under delivery and identify actions to increase delivery 
in future years”. The Council has not met its target for 2015-18 and as such 
has triggered the need to prepare an action plan.  

6.2.2 The Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) states that “any area may wish to 
produce an action plan as a matter of good practice or to identify processes to 
exceed housing requirements and support delivery”.  

6.2.3 The Housing Action Plan is not a statutory document and therefore does not 
require independent examination or approval by Cabinet and/or Full Council.  

6.2.4 There is no legal obligation to publicly consult on the Housing Action Plan. 
The PPG states that this is a decision for each local planning authority being 
“mindful of the need to both produce and implement the document’s 
proposals in a timely fashion”. The PPG also encourages the involvement of 
relevant stakeholders in the process stating that “it is for the local planning 
authority to decide which stakeholders to involve, although representatives of 
those with an impact on the rate of delivery should be included, such as: small 
and large developers; land promoters; private and public land owners; 
infrastructure providers (such as utility providers, highways, etc); … 
neighbouring authorities with adjoining or cross-boundary sites”. 

6.2.5 The Housing Action Plan may be considered a material consideration in the 
determination of planning applications.  

 

Page 5



 

PL 19/048 P 

 

6.3 Property Implications (DRAFT)  

There are key actions identified that relate to the Council’s property and asset 
management portfolio. However, there is no direct implications arising from 
the approval of the HAP.  

7. KEY RISKS (DRAFT)  

There are risks associated with not publishing a HAP, the Council would not 
fulfil its duties to produce an Action Plan. Up to date policy documents provide 
improved guidance, clarity and certainty for all interested parties. It will assist 
with progression of Enfield’s new Local Plan.   

8. IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES – CREATING A LIFETIME OF 
OPPORTUNITIES IN ENFIELD  

8.1 The Action Plan helps to implement the Council’s priorities in the Corporate 
Plan through the primary objective of speeding up housing delivery in the 
borough. This will be a significant benefit to the community since there is a 
need to see a step change in building more homes in the borough to meet the 
needs of residents.  

8.2 The HAP will form part of the emerging Local Plan conversation. The Local 
Plan is a project priority for the Corporate Plan. The implication of a decision 
to support the recommendation in this report will demonstrate assistance in 
the delivery of the Local Plan. 

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS  

The HAP has the primary purpose of speeding up housing delivery in the 
borough to meet the future requirements of Enfield’s residents. This is 
essential to ensure health and wellbeing of Enfield’s residents and visitors 
since significant new home building has been identified as a specific 
requirement. 

10.   PERFORMANCE AND DATA IMPLICATIONS  

The HAP will be monitored annually, and progress reported through the 
Council’s Annual Monitoring Report.  

11. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS  

Housing is fundamental to health as shown by the life-expectancy gap in the 
homeless population of approximately 30 years.  With an increasing 
population it will be fundamental to the health to ensure adequate housing for 
residents.   

Background Papers   

Appendix 1: Enfield Housing Action Plan 2019 

Page 6



Enfi eld 
Housing Action Plan 2019

   
September 2019
www.enfi eld.gov.uk/newlocalplan

Page 7



 
 
 
 

1 
 

 

Contents 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2. Enfield’s housing delivery ............................................................................................................................. 3 

3.    Methodology ................................................................................................................................................. 6 

4. Delivery rate analysis ................................................................................................................................... 8 

5. Supporting Plan/Strategies (existing and emerging) .................................................................................. 10 

6 Key Actions ................................................................................................................................................. 14 

7 Monitoring and Next Steps ......................................................................................................................... 23 

 

 

  

Page 8



 
 
 
 

2 
 

1. Introduction  

Background  

1.1 The Government and Greater London Authority (GLA) recognise the importance of increasing 
the delivery of more new homes through their plans and strategies. Consequently, a number 
of measures and reforms to the planning system have been implemented to help address the 
national housing crisis, improve housing delivery, affordability and remove barriers to 
development. These are set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) 
and draft new London Plan (2017)1.  

1.2 Local authorities are being required to be more proactive in increasing the speed and quantity 
of housing supply to meet the identified housing needs of their local area.   

1.3 Through the new NPPF, the Housing Delivery Test (HDT) was introduced. This measures how 
many homes have been built in a local authority area over a three year period. A review and 
analysis of housing delivery in each borough over the three year period has been undertaken 
and can be viewed online here: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/housing-delivery-
test-2018-measurement.  If insufficient homes are delivered in a local authority area, then the 
relevant Councils face a range of consequences, including the requirement to prepare a 
Housing Action Plan.  

1.4 Enfield’s housing target is 2,355 new homes over the past three years, which equates to 798 
new homes per annum, as set out in the current London Plan. However, a total of 2,003 new 
homes were delivered in Enfield over this period resulting in a score of 85% delivery against 
its target. Consequently, the Council is required to prepare an Action Plan setting out 
objectives and actions with the aim to increase delivery of new homes across the borough.    

 

  

 
1 At the time of writing, the draft new London Plan is under examination and scheduled for publication in mid-
2020. 

Page 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/housing-delivery-test-2018-measurement
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/housing-delivery-test-2018-measurement


 
 
 
 

3 
 

2. Enfield’s housing delivery 

2.1 To improve future supply of new homes, it is important to understand past delivery. The 
following section sets out past delivery of new homes against regionally set targets. 

Housing delivery  

2.2 Increasing the supply of new homes has  been the focus of Enfield Council for several years. 
The Core Strategy (adopted in 2010) successfully managed significant change in the borough 
and established a housing target of 395 new homes per year. Since then, through iterations of 
the London Plan, Enfield’s target increased from 395 to 560 in 2011/12 and latterly to the 
current rate of 798 in 2015/16. The graph below shows housing delivery from the past to 
present and future housing delivery projections.  

 

Figure 1: Housing delivery and trajectory  

2.3 London’s population is likely to continue to grow and for Enfield the increase will require more 
housing to be delivered to accommodate a potential population growth of around 51,000 
residents, equating to approximately 31,000 new households over the next 15 years.  Enfield 
is and will continue to face demand for new homes, jobs and pressure on existing 
infrastructure and the need for new infrastructure to support these changes. Consequently, a 
step change in the construction of more quality homes at affordable prices to meet residents’ 
needs is a top priority for the Council and is being addressed in the emerging new Housing 
and Growth Strategy 2020-2030 and emerging new Local Plan.  The Council has recently 
published its latest Local Development Scheme 2019-20222 outlining the programme for 
progressing with a new Local Plan, with a targeted adoption in 2021. 

 
2 https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/planning/lds-2019-2022-planning.pdf 

Page 10



 
 
 
 

4 
 

2.4 Enfield’s new Local Plan needs to address changes resulting from new national legislation and 
reform through the Localism Act (2011), the new National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
and the Mayor’s draft new London Plan (2017).  

2.5 Draft London Plan Policy H1 – ‘Increasing Housing Supply’ sets a new ten year housing target 
for net housing completions. For Enfield, the new target will be 18,760 (net) new homes 
equating to 1,876 new homes per annum. This new target is over double the current rate of 
798. Therefore, this Action Plan addresses how the Council aims to improve both current and 
future housing delivery by undertaking key actions to either facilitate or deliver a greater 
number of homes in Enfield.  

Five-year housing land supply    

2.6 The Council approved its latest Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) and Housing Trajectory in 
March 20193. This demonstrates a continuous five-year supply of housing that will deliver the 
current target of 798 new homes per annum equating to 3,990 new homes over the five year 
period.  Figures based on recent calculations in the housing trajectory project an estimated 
delivery of 4,808 (net) new homes including a 20% buffer. The AMR is reviewed annually 
therefore Enfield’s new housing target will be reviewed once the new London Plan is adopted.  

2.7 If Enfield fails to meet the Housing Delivery Test in future years, there are consequences. One 
of the consequences is to apply a 5% buffer to the housing trajectory if housing delivery falls 
below 85%. The other is, where housing delivery is below 75%, planning applications will be 
assessed against ‘the presumption in favour of sustainable development’ set out in paragraph 
11 of the NPPF. This means the Council will not have a local say over planning applications, 
as it will not be able to use its development plan to assess development.   

2.8 Consequently, the Council considers it good practice to prepare this Housing Action Plan in 
order to proactively seek to maximise delivery to meet identified housing need in the borough. 
The Action Plan seeks to establish any causes for under delivery and identify how this can be 
addressed to increase delivery of housing need, in line with Government guidance. 

Housing monitoring 

2.9 The Council’s quarterly reporting on Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) monitors the 
performance of planning, regeneration and housing. KPIs including new residential 
applications, permissions, completions and affordable housing supply are reported to the 
Council’s Executive Management Team, alongside additional performance reporting on the 
planning application process which is undertaken by Corporate Strategy and Performance.   

2.10 Additional methods of monitoring housing delivery are through monthly reporting to the GLA 
for all residential consents granted. These permissions then form part of the annual starts and 
completions exercise undertaken to determine total number of housing completions annually.  
Annual completions allow the Council to monitor its performance and are undertaken by the 
Strategic Planning and Design Service through the London Development Database (LDD) 
annual reporting on housing starts and completions.    

  

 
3 https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/planning/annual-monitoring-report-and-housing-trajectory-2019-
planning.pdf  

Page 11

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/planning/annual-monitoring-report-and-housing-trajectory-2019-planning.pdf
https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/planning/annual-monitoring-report-and-housing-trajectory-2019-planning.pdf


 
 
 
 

5 
 

Council-led direct delivery  

2.11 The Council continues to commit to a bold and ambitious house building programme and this 
continues to contribute to a large portion of the borough’s overall new housing supply. 
Council-led housing schemes through regeneration and estate renewal programmes include: 

• The borough’s flagship Meridian Water regeneration project allocated through the 
Edmonton Leeside Area Action Plan (ELAAP), with 725 new homes confirmed through 
Phase 1 and planning applications now submitted for Phase 2 for a further 2,000 new 
homes;  

• Estate regeneration of Ladderswood in New Southgate, identified within the North 
Circular Area Action Plan (NCAAP); 

• Estate Regeneration of the Alma Estate with 900+ homes in Ponders End, identified in 
North East Enfield Area Action Plan (NEAAP);  

• Estate Regeneration of New Avenue (Southgate); and  

• The Council’s Phase 1 Small Sites programme across seven sites due to complete 94 
new homes in 2019/20.   

 

Page 12



 
 
 
 

6 
 

3. Methodology  

Housing Delivery   

3.1 This is the first Housing Action Plan for Enfield and it focuses on internal processes the 
Council is committed to undertake with the aim of accelerating housing delivery.  Future 
iterations of the Action Plan will include feedback from the private sector, registered providers, 
other external stakeholders and how the Council can assist to ensure faster housing delivery 
within the borough.  

3.2 The first step to producing this Action Plan was to identify the key service areas that support 
housing delivery. This followed engagement with each service area to identify and analyse 
possible root causes for slower build out rates in Enfield.  This instigated the establishment of 
a Housing Delivery Board of internal officers to collaborate and identify key actions that the 
Council is or could undertake to increase housing delivery.  

3.3 Housing delivery, in particular delivery of affordable and specialist housing to meet pressing 
local need, is supported across several service areas and be categorised as either:  

A) Process or enabling or  

B) Direct delivery.  

3.4 These categories can be split into several services that the Council either support housing by 
assisting delivery through the private sector or deliver housing through Council-led housing 
regeneration, estate renewal programme and Council-owned property and assets portfolio.  

A) Process/enabling service areas  

3.5 The Planning Service comprising Development Management and Strategic Planning & Design 
facilitate the development process required to deliver housing.  Improved performance, 
resourcing and efficiency in both decision taking and plan making will enhance delivery by 
providing developer confidence. Promoting a proactive growth and development agenda 
through identifying strategic growth areas and site allocations and policies will support housing 
growth and good design practices.  

3.6 In addition, there are statutory and non-statutory functions that sit within the Council’s Strategy 
and Policy Hub unit providing corporate support to deliver council-housing and affordable 
housing to improve housing numbers and tackle issues such as homelessness and temporary 
accommodation through the strategies that are being produced. 

B) Direct delivery service areas  

3.7 The Council manages and owns a large portfolio of land and assets that support direct 
housing delivery. These service areas include: Housing Regeneration and Estate Renewal 
programmes that improve and optimise existing council-housing to maximise housing delivery 
and improve quality across all tenures and increase the supply.  

3.8 In addition, the Council own a portfolio of land and assets. This portfolio is managed by the 
Property Assets Team. The Council has recently approved the Strategic Assets Management 
Plan (SAMP), which covers all Council-owned property, except for the Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) residential housing stock. The SAMP is the core document, which is designed 
to support proactive and strategic decision making, ensuring that the Core Principles are 
reflected in the decisions of all parts of the organisation. The SAMP is written to cover the five-
year period between 2019/20 to 2023/24.  

Page 13



 
 
 
 

7 
 

3.9 To gain a better understanding of the housing situation in London, the Council attends regular 
meetings with other boroughs to discuss key matters and attempt to identify further relevant 
information and solutions to the problems. For example, the Council attends regular meetings 
of the ALBPO Group (Association of London Borough Planning Officers) at which the issue of 
housing targets is a regular agenda item for discussion.  

 

  

Page 14



 
 
 
 

8 
 

4. Delivery rate analysis 

4.1 As part of the analysis undertaken to produce this Action Plan, internal engagement was 
carried out with officers across key service areas to identify issues affecting housing delivery. 
Further work will be undertaken to actively reach out to the development industry and other 
stakeholders to identify and address issues in future iterations of this Action Plan.  The table 
below sets out a summary of key issues identified.  

Table 1: Summary of key issues identified and possible causes for slower delivery rates   

Key issues  Consultation findings and its potential impact on housing 
delivery  

Infrastructure and 
public services 

If existing infrastructure e.g. transport network, schools, GPs etc… does not 
have the capacity to support increased housing growth, this will have an 
impact on housing delivery.  

Future funding for infrastructure is therefore needed to unlock future sites 
for housing development and growth within the borough.  

The Council needs to continue to work with providers on transport network 
issues, ongoing Duty to Cooperate work, education providers to identify 
existing capacity which could hinder housing delivery.  

As part of the new Local Plan and Duty to Cooperate work, the Council 
regularly engages with providers about future housing growth and 
infrastructure requirements. These requirements will be captured in the 
Infrastructure Delivery Framework.  

Brownfield land In the past three years, housing development has been on brownfield land. 
These are often complex sites which can delay delivery. In the case of large 
estate renewal programmes these often involve compulsory purchase 
orders and complex decant strategy which impact delivery.   

The Council needs to encourage the delivery of small sites for new homes 
through the new Local Plan.  

Heavy reliance on 
strategic sites with a 
number being council-
led schemes 

Expanding options by identifying additional development sites, with new 
delivery partners, public sector organisations, registered providers, private 
landowners through the new Local Plan process and Call for Sites will 
unlock opportunities. 

Constraints 
associated with local 
characteristics of land 
available for 
development   

Land constraints make it difficult to facilitate further significant development. 
Aside from Meridian Water in the south east of the borough, Enfield has to 
date identified relatively few areas in the borough where larger scale growth 
and change can be easily accommodated. Consequently, the new Local 
Plan needs to address this.  

An incomplete 
understanding of why 
housing permissions 
are not implemented.  

There may be a number of wider issues out of the Council’s direct influence 
and control on why planning permissions are not implemented. These 
factors could include economic uncertainty and/or construction costs, local 
labour supply and costs and other influences. Further research needs to be 
undertaken with local and strategic private sector to understand why 
consented schemes are not translating into delivery. 

Page 15



 
 
 
 

9 
 

Key issues  Consultation findings and its potential impact on housing 
delivery  

Council versus private 
sector issues 
regarding housing 
delivery 

Further research and analysis are needed to identify key developers to 
consult with in future for improved monitoring and performance feedback, 
and the ability to identify build out timeframes/phasing methodology for 
larger housing schemes.  

Supply and demand 
issues 

There is a need for more affordable housing and mix of housing types in 
Enfield. However, further evidence work will need to be undertaken as part 
of the new Local Plan.  

Small sites  The Council has undertaken an evidence-based study to inform the draft 
new London Plan4.  

Appropriate site 
identification for 
specialist housing  

The issue is associated with the delivery of specialist housing, particularly 
when seeking to deliver affordable homes where financial viability can be 
challenging for some housing with care models. 

Staff and resourcing The Planning Service is building additional capacity and in-house expertise 
and skills. This will effectively respond to planning applications and 
assessment of major opportunities to improve decision making times. 

 

 

  

 
4 This is set out in the evidence the Council provided as part of the hearing sessions for the London Plan, 
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/ad_75_enfield_small_sites_research_2018_31_january_2019.pdf  

Page 16

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/ad_75_enfield_small_sites_research_2018_31_january_2019.pdf


 
 
 
 

10 
 

 

5. Supporting Plan/Strategies (existing and emerging)   

5.1 This Action Plan will work alongside existing, emerging plans and strategies to provide a 
mechanism for improved housing delivery alongside significant growth challenges. The key 
plans and strategies are detailed below.  

Enfield Corporate Plan 2018-2022 

5.2 The Corporate Plan is the Council’s most 
important strategic document that will frame 
policy development and resource allocation, 
setting the vision for the borough. Over the next 
four years, the Plan makes it clear that:  

• ‘good homes’ in well-connected 
neighbourhoods is a priority of the Council. 
This means the Council will continue to 
create thriving, affordable places and 
homes. 

• Increase the supply of affordable, quality 
housing options for ownership, social rent 
and private rent.  

• Drive investment in rail, roads and cycling 
infrastructure to improve connectivity and 
support economic development.   

• Create an enterprising environment for 
business to prosper with world-class digital 
infrastructure and access to the right skills 
and networks.  

 

Housing & Growth Strategy 2020 – 2030 (Draft) 

5.3 The emerging Strategy will set out how we will deliver more and better homes to address 
inequality, create a more balanced housing market and help local people access a good 
home. This will play a huge part in supporting our ambition to deliver a lifetime of opportunities 
for people in Enfield, by creating good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods. 

5.4 A key initiative of the Strategy will be to deliver a house building programme, which will include 
delivery in partnership with registered providers. This will create homes for local people on a 
range of different incomes can afford to live in at different stages of their lives. This will 
significantly increase housing supply and create an opportunity to develop homes and 
neighbourhoods that cater to all levels of incomes, are health promoting, environmentally 
sustainable, child friendly, age-friendly and accessible for people through their lifetime. 

5.5 The strategy is not just about creating new homes, it also about how we improve existing 
homes in the borough, ensuring they are used for the benefit of local people. This includes 

Enfield’s Corporate Plan  

Page 17

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/your-council/enfield-corporate-plan-your-council.pdf


 
 
 
 

11 
 

how we work with our communities to maintain and improve Council homes and how we work 
in partnership to improve private sector homes.   

5.6 There are five priorities to achieve the Council’s corporate vision of good homes in well-
connected neighbourhoods: 

1) More genuinely affordable homes for local people 

2) Invest in and be proud of our Council homes 

3) Quality and variety in private housing  

4) Connect, involve and empower people in vibrant neighbourhoods 

5) Inclusive homes for everyone 

5.7 This ten-year strategy will set out how the Council intends to manage and deliver more and 
better homes to address inequality, create a more balanced housing market and help local 
people access a good home. This means, providing an overarching framework against which 
other policies on more specific housing issues will be considered and formulated.  

Preventing Homelessness and Rough Sleeping in Enfield 2020-2025 Strategy (Draft) 

5.8 The Council is preparing a new strategy on how it will work with partners to prevent and tackle 
homelessness and rough sleeping in Enfield. The ‘Preventing Homelessness and Rough 
Sleeping’ strategy is being prepared as a requirement under the Homelessness Act 2002 for 
all housing authorities to have a homeless strategy.  

5.9 The overall vision is to end homelessness in Enfield. This means ensuring that everyone has 
a safe, stable place to live. It means supporting residents to make informed choices so that 
they have a home they can afford, at the right time, which meets their needs. It means that if 
an individual or family is at risk of homelessness, they receive the support they need to 
prevent it. 

5.10 The vision will be delivered through the following five ambitions: 

• Treat people with empathy, dignity and respect - Supporting people with compassion, 
listening to their views and ideas and working with them, other services and the 
community to prevent and end homelessness together. 

• Make homeless prevention a priority for everyone - Working with the community, our 
partners and across the council to spot risks of homelessness early and take holistic 
action to prevent it.  

• Support people to access the right accommodation - Empowering local people to 
find suitable accommodation and driving up standards in the private rented sector. 

• Support people to plan for their lifetime housing needs - Helping people to think 
about how they can meet their housing needs now and, in the future, and respond to 
changing requirements over their lifetime. 

• End rough sleeping in Enfield - Working in partnership to positively engage with and 
support people who are sleeping rough and prevent this form of homelessness from 
happening. 

  

Page 18



 
 
 
 

12 
 

New Local Plan 2036  

5.11 The emerging new Local Plan is a key statutory document which will 
set out the overall development strategy for the borough for the period 
between 2018-2036. A new Local Plan is needed to conform with the 
requirements of the NPPF (2019) and to identify how the Council 
intends to meet the new housing and employment needs to 
successfully deliver government requirements and those of the new 
London Plan. The new Local Plan will gather weight as it proceeds 
through production, and, when adopted will replace the Core Strategy 
and other planning policy documents.  

5.12 Other key strategic documents that will guide future housing growth 
and accelerate housing delivery, detailed below: 

Edmonton Leeside Area Action Plan (ELAAP) 

5.13 The ELAAP is a Planning Framework to support the delivery of 
the first 5,000 new homes at Meridian Water.  Additionally, the 
area will accommodate new employment, supporting 
infrastructure and other facilities required to support housing 
growth. 

  

Page 19



 
 
 
 

13 
 

S106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) review  

5.14 To improve the S106 process work is 
underway to support future housing 
delivery by developing new policies to 
establish the type, scale and nature of 
contributions, which will form the basis of 
an update to the existing S106 SPD. 

5.15 The Council's CIL Charging Schedule 
came into effect on 1 April 2016 and to 
date has contributed over £5m towards 
the new Meridian Water Station. Due to 
area-based regeneration and increasing 
house prices in the borough over the past 
six years the Council intends to review its 
CIL Charging Schedule in parallel to carefully 
align with the new Local Plan, which also has a 
requirement for consultation and independent 
examination of the CIL.   

5.16 In light of the latest market conditions, the Council is underway to review the Enfield CIL 
Charging Schedule. This will ensure enough monies is collected for future infrastructure needs 
to support housing growth within Enfield. In addition, an Infrastructure Funding Statement will 
be prepared setting out how the Council intends to spend both S106 and CIL monies each 
year.  

Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 

5.17 The Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) is a document that supports Enfield’s growth. It 
identifies service areas where investment will be needed to meet the additional demand from 
population and housing growth over the plan period. It also sets the basis for policies for 
developer contributions to meet future need and highlights and where applicable identifies 
gaps in existing provision to form a platform for future development, project delivery and 
funding bids.  

5.18 The IDP is a ‘live’ document that is reviewed periodically so that the Council can monitor 
progress on infrastructure delivery and have in place an up to date schedule of infrastructure 
requirements. It will review existing provision for all infrastructure including social infrastructure 
such as health and education facilities, as well as physical infrastructure such as transport and 
utilities, and green and blue infrastructure such as parks and open spaces – to support 
housing delivery.  

  

Meridian Water station, completed (2019) 

Page 20



 
 
 
 

14 
 

6 Key Actions 

6.1 This action plan sets out a range of measures that the Council is progressing to address rates 
of delivery, including the establishment of a new Housing Delivery Board to oversee housing 
projects and monitor progress. A number of areas have been identified where specific actions 
can be taken by the following:  

A) Ensure housing delivery remains a council priority 

B) Enfield’s housing policy  

C) Improve and make efficient local planning authority processes  

D) Marketing, Placemaking and Partnership working  

 

Page 21



 
 
 
 

15 
 

 

Table 2: Key actions identified to support the delivery of housing 

A: Ensure housing delivery remains a council priority  

Action  Aims  Measuring 
success and 
milestones  

Timescale 

Q1, Q2, Q3 
and Q4 

Priority  

High, 
Medium or 
Low5  

Status  

Started, in-
progress or 
completed  

Lead   

1)  Establish a 
Housing 
Delivery Board  

- To oversee and address housing delivery 
matters 

- To monitor the key actions identified in the 
HAP  

- To oversee the delivery and progress of all 
new Council housing stock 

- To provide guidance on potential 
partnering and funding opportunities 

- To monitor the build out progress of the 
Council’s housing and regeneration 
schemes through a new monitoring 
dashboard  

- To monitor performance in accordance 
with the Housing Delivery Target 
methodology 

- To advise necessary actions to unlock 
strategic issues/trends that affect private 
sector housing delivery in Enfield 

Housing 
Delivery Board 
established  

Q3, 2019  High  Started  The Housing Delivery Board is 
made up of senior officers across 
the Council that are either directly 
involved with housing delivery or 
support the planning process.  

These include: 

- Housing & Regeneration  

- Strategic Property Service  

- Temporary Accommodation 

- Corporate Services  

- Meridian Water  

- Strategic Planning & Design 

- Development Management  

 

 
5 In terms of return/investment to deliver/unlock housing growth 

P
age 22



 
 
 
 

16 
 

Action  Aims  Measuring 
success and 
milestones  

Timescale 

Q1, Q2, Q3 
and Q4 

Priority  

High, 
Medium or 
Low5  

Status  

Started, in-
progress or 
completed  

Lead   

2)  Improve 
housing 
delivery 
monitoring  

- To establish a new ‘dashboard’ to monitor 
housing delivery and development in the 
pipeline 

- To improve internal reporting for Council-
led housing schemes  

- To provide further breakdown of tenure 
and housing types  

- To have a central dashboard for all officers 
to use  

- To provide consistency in reporting  

New dashboard 
in place  

Q4, 2019 High  In progress - 
currently 
working on 
production of 
new 
monitoring 
dashboard.   

Knowledge & Insight Hub  

3)  Housing & 
Growth 
Strategy 
(2020-2030)   

- Ensure policies, strategies and other 
relevant documents are in place to support 
housing delivery  

- Ensure the Housing and Growth Strategy 
is implemented to achieve the specified 
goals  

- To increase council housing delivery and 
affordable homes over the next ten years   

Housing & 
Growth 
Strategy – 
published 

Number of 
homes 
delivered  

Number of 
affordable 
homes 
delivered  

Q3 2019 
Consultation 

Q4 2019 
and Q1 
2020 
Publication 
of Final 
Strategy   

High  In progress  Policy, People Engagement Hub  

Housing & Regeneration 

P
age 23



 
 
 
 

17 
 

Action  Aims  Measuring 
success and 
milestones  

Timescale 

Q1, Q2, Q3 
and Q4 

Priority  

High, 
Medium or 
Low5  

Status  

Started, in-
progress or 
completed  

Lead   

4)  Preventing 
Homelessness 
and Rough 
Sleeping 
Strategy 
(2020-2025)   

- Ensure policies, strategies and other 
relevant documents are in place to support 
housing delivery  

- Ensure the Preventing Homelessness and 
Rough Sleeping Strategy is implemented 
to achieve the specified goals  

- To reduce homelessness and rough 
sleeping over the next five years    

Preventing 
Homelessness 
and Rough 
Sleeping 
Strategy – 
published 

Reduction in 
the number of 
homelessness 
and rough 
sleeping  

Q3 2019 
Consultation 

Q4 2019 
and Q1 
2020 
Publication 
of Final 
Strategy   

High  In progress  Policy, People Engagement Hub  

Housing & Regeneration 

5)  Strategic 
Asset 
Management 
Plan (SAMP)  

 

- Operational Assets Strategy  

- Rural Estate and Strategy Review  

- Explore opportunities for planning/green-
belt compliant residential development 

Redevelopment 
of council 
assets into new 
residential 
development to 
increase 
housing supply 
for Enfield.  

Q1 2021 Medium Started Strategic Property Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 24



 
 
 
 

18 
 

B) Enfield’s housing policy  

Action  Aims  Measuring 
success and 
milestones  

Timescale 

Q1, Q2, Q3 
and Q4 

Priority  

High, 
Medium or 
Low6  

Status  

Started, in-
progress or 
completed  

Lead   

6)  Enfield’s new 
Local Plan 
2036 

- Deliver a new Local Plan to conform with 
the requirements set out in the updated 
NPPF (2019)  

- To identify how the Council intends to meet 
the new housing, employment and 
infrastructure needs to successfully deliver 
government requirements and be in 
general conformity with the London Plan 

- To achieve a step-change in the delivery of 
new homes  

Delivery of 
consultation 
milestones in 
the LDS  

Q2-3 2020 
draft new 
Local Plan 
for 
publication 

Q3-4 2021 
Final 
adopted 
Local Plan 

High  Started 

Early stage 
of 
consultation 
completed  

In-progress 
with draft 
new Local 
Plan  

Evidence 
gathering 
underway 

- Strategic Planning and Design  

7)  CIL and S106 
review  

- Work proactively and collaboratively with 
internal/external partners including other 
Council departments and developers  

- To ensure identification of strategic 
infrastructure projects.   

- Align existing and future match funding 
opportunities for infrastructure projects to 
support growth.    

Increase 
overall CIL 
revenue  

Prioritise 
strategic 
infrastructure  

S106 monies  

 High  Started  - Strategic Planning and Design 

 

 
6 In terms of return/investment to deliver/unlock housing growth 

P
age 25



 
 
 
 

19 
 

C) Improve our planning application process  

Action  Aims  Measuring 
success and 
milestones  

Timescale 

Q1, Q2, Q3 
and Q4 

Priority  

High, 
Medium or 
Low7  

Status  

Started, in-
progress or 
completed  

Lead   

8)  Improve our 
planning 
application 
processes 
through the 
establishment 
of new 
Strategic 
Major 
Applications 
Team 

- Work proactively and collaboratively with 
internal/external partners including other 
Council departments and developers  

- To ensure speedy progression of strategic 
development sites and large-scale planning 
applications and progression of those 
applications which already have planning 
permission, but work has not yet 
commenced on site.  

- Ensure that the process for strategic sites 
are efficient and progressive through early 
engagement of stakeholders to ensure all 
relevant issues are understood at an early 
stage 

Strategic 
Projects 
officer in place 

Team in place   

Q1, 2019 High  In progress 
wider 
capacity 
building 

- Development Management  

 

  

 
7 In terms of return/investment to deliver/unlock housing growth 

P
age 26



 
 
 
 

20 
 

 

D) Marketing, Placemaking and Partnership working  

Action  Aims  Measuring 
success and 
milestones  

Timescale 

Q1, Q2, Q3 
and Q4 

Priority  

High, 
Medium or 
Low8  

Status  

Started, in-
progress or 
completed  

Lead   

9)  Continue with 
estate renewal 
and 
regeneration 
programmes  

 

- To bring forward a programme of 
development on council-owned sites to 
contribute to meeting housing need. These 
sites include: Alma (993 units), New 
Avenue (408 units), Ladderswood (517 
units) - all three schemes are under 
construction. Discussions are underway to 
explore an increase in density and uplifts 
on all three schemes, with a particular 
need at Ladderswood due to viability 
issues for the current number of units 
being delivered.  

- To report to Cabinet in October 2019 
seeking approval to work towards ballot on 
Snells and Joyce. Architect appointed. 
Additional engagement resource identified. 
Community centre being converted into 
community hub 

 

Completion of 
regeneration 
schemes 
already 
underway.  

Successful 
ballot result at 
Snells and 
Joyce and 
commencement 
of delivery.  

Additional 
estates 
identified for 
renewal and 
viable schemes 
brought forward 
for delivery 
after successful 
ballot results 
achieved 

 

 

Present to 
2028 

Q4 2019/20 

 

High  In progress  - Housing Regeneration  

- Head of Development  

- Regeneration Project Director  

 
8 In terms of return/investment to deliver/unlock housing growth 

P
age 27



 
 
 
 

21 
 

Action  Aims  Measuring 
success and 
milestones  

Timescale 

Q1, Q2, Q3 
and Q4 

Priority  

High, 
Medium or 
Low8  

Status  

Started, in-
progress or 
completed  

Lead   

10)  Operational 
Assets 
Strategy 

- To determine which sites can be 
considered for disposal and be brought 
forward for housing delivery. One of the 
first sites released for Council-led housing 
delivery is at Bury Street West Depot 

- To work with key partners to support 
delivery  

 

Release of sites  

 

Q4 19/20 

  

Medium  Started  - Strategic Property Services  

11)  Encouraging 
the delivery of 
new homes on 
small sites  

 

- To consider new policies that support the 
delivery of small sites through the new 
Local Plan 

- To continue with the Council’s garage 
home building programme – success 

- To work with local businesses to build 
capacity in the local construction sector to 
encourage them into the delivery of homes 
on small sites 

- To use the Brownfield Register Land to 
promote small sites 

GLA funding 
secured - £18m 
Building 
Council Home 
for Londoners 

Number of 
permissions 
issued 

Number of 
completions  

Delivery of 
project 

 

Small Sites 
programme 

Phase 1 

Due for 
completion 
Q3 2019 

High  In progress - Housing & Regeneration  

12)  Continue to 
work with 
partners 

- To continue with master planning and 
capacity work  

Successful 
funding bids 
secured or 

On-going 
and as 
opportunities 

High  In Progress  - Meridian Water  

P
age 28



 
 
 
 

22 
 

Action  Aims  Measuring 
success and 
milestones  

Timescale 

Q1, Q2, Q3 
and Q4 

Priority  

High, 
Medium or 
Low8  

Status  

Started, in-
progress or 
completed  

Lead   

including the 
GLA-family, 
Registered 
Providers and 
the private 
sector 

- To facilitate the development of the Angel 
Edmonton Town Centre Community Hub 

- To increase opportunities for the 
development of specialist housing supply 
aligned to local need through appropriate 
site identification and joint funding bids  

- Continue with a liaison officer for 
registered providers of affordable housing, 
to help identify future schemes and unlock 
an issues with current developments.  

applied for to 
support 
housing. 

Delivery of sites  

 

arise on land 
acquisitions 
and land 
assembly  

 

The HIF bid 
successful 
secured 
£156m to 
unlock 
housing 
growth for 
around 
10,000 
homes at 
Meridian 
Water.  

 

 

Funding 
applications 
in 
preparation  

SIP Funding 
Submission 
September 
2019 

Good 
Growth Fund 
October 
2019 
submission 

- Head of Development 

- Planning Service  

 

 

 

 

- Property & Economy  

 

 

 

  

P
age 29



 
 
 
 

23 
 

 

7 Monitoring and Next Steps  

7.1 The Council will monitor the performance of this Action Plan annually to coincide with 
the annual statements published on the Housing Delivery Test and starts and 
completions exercise which determines total number of homes delivered each financial 
year towards the end of the year.  

7.2 In addition to this, the Council will aim to invite external feedback to help facilitate 
development. This will be done through establishing a developer forum with prospective 
developers and stakeholders to determine underlying cause for slower build out rates 
and how to improve housing delivery.  

7.3 As the monitoring timeframes for progress are set out in Table 2 of this Action Plan, the 
Council will aim to monitor the key actions identified to ensure continued progress is 
reported against key actions.  

Page 30



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2O19I2O REPORT NO.

MEETING TITLE AND DATE:

REPORT OF:
Director of Law and
Governance

Contact officer and telephone number:
Andrea Clemons
Email

Agenda - PaÉ:1 Item

Subject: Police S92 Gontract

Wards: All
Key Decision No: 4994

Gabinet Member consulted; Gommunity
Safety and Gohesion

1 .1 The current Community Policing contract expires at the end of August 2019 and we have
been advised that the price will increase compared with the current contract, due to the end
of a reduced cost offer by the Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime across London.

1.2 This report seeks authority to increase funding for the provision of 16 police officers to work
on Council Housing Estates for a further 2 years. The funding is provided from the Housing
Revenue Account and will require approval for an additional budget in year 2019-20,
although this increase will be gradual due to existing vacancies in the team.

1.3 This is an important and valued service to residents on the targeted estates and contributes
to reduced crime levels and increased feelings of resident safety.

1. EXEGUTIVE SUMMARY

o approve additional funding from the Housing Revenue Account for 2019120 and for two
ubsequent years to facilitate the continuation of the policing service on prioritised
ousing estates.

RECOMMENDATIONS

PL t9/066 0

Page 31 Agenda Item 2



BAGKGROUND

3.1 The Community Safety Team has delivered a community policing service on 5 high
crime council housing estates since September 2016. The current contract allows for
the provision of 16 police officers on a "buy one, get one free" basis and expird at the
end of August 2019. The funding model is now changing and to secure the same level
of resource we need to increase our funding. Following a discussion at EMT it was
agreed that the report could be signed by the Director.

3.2 Regular contact between the Community Safety Team and the Dedicated Policing Unit
has ensured that the team is tasked to nign Críme areas on council housing eõtates
and provide fortnightly reports to indicate the outcome of those taskings.

3.3 The contract has been successful and can demonstrate positive outcomes in the areas
where the work has been prioritised. Listed below are some of the key beneficial
outcomes from analysis of the current contract to the end of January 2019

Since September 2016, the Safer Estates Team have made 767 arrests in
total and have carried out 2132 stop and searches.

The number of crimes in the 5 Prioríty Estates (The Shires, Ayley Croft, Joyce
Avenue and Snells Park, Moree Way and Lytchet) has increased by 11.5o/o
when comparing the period before and after the Safer Estates contract
started. However, in the same period, Enfield on average and including lower
crime areas, experienced a greater increase ol 14.7o/o.

Drug offences have decreased in Enfíeld by 24.9% but have increased in the
5 Priority Estates by 18.2o/o. This suggests that the Safer Estates Teams
are proactively apprehending more offenders in these areas whilst on
patrol.

Violence against the person offences decreased in the 5 priority estates by
4.2%.ln the same period, Enfield experienced an increase of 15,60/o.

Burglary offences in the 5 priority estates have decreased by 18.9% in the
length of the project. ln Enfield, in the same time burglaries have increased
slightly by 1.2%

Criminal Damage offences in the 5 priority estates have decreased by 10.4%. ln
the same period Enfield experienced an increase of 4.60/o.

3.4 The cost of services to be provided is detailed in the Part2 of this report

3.5 There is no requirement to tender for this contract as the Metropolitan Police via
MOPAC are a unique provider of for policing in the Capital.

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 Option l- Do nothing

PL 19/066 0

Page 32



5.1

Crime is a major concern in London and there is recognition that the MPS have been
forced to make savings by selling buildings etc to protect the front line of services.
Even then the demand for police outstrips supply and crime numbers in areas outside
where the Council funded teams have been working are increasing, demonstrating the
value of the additional Council funded resource.

5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

To ensure that Enfield Çommunities feel safer. Through the provision of additional
officers, improvements have been made in targeted areas. We know that people value
the scheme through direct input at public meetings and other feedback.
The team have been able to support other additional support at community events
within the limitations of the l-lRA requirements

COMMENTS FROM OTHER DEPARTMENTS

6.1 Financial lmplications
The cost outlined in the report Parl2will be managed within the HRA

6.2 Legal lmplications

6.2.1 Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 permits
local authorities to do anything which is calculated to
facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of
their functions.

6.2.2 ln addition the Council has a general power of
competence under Section 1(1) of the Localism Act 201 1

to do anything that individuals may do, provided it is not
prohibited by legislation and subject to Public Law
principles.

6.2.3 Section 92 (2) of The Police Act 1996 provides that the
Council of a London Borough, County, or District which falls
wholly or partly within the Metropolitan Police district may
make grants for the police purposes to the Receiver for the
Metropolitan Police District. This includes the Mayor's
Office. Grants can be made as a gift or there is an
arrangement for contract of services. Section 92 (3) of the
1996 Act provides Grants under this section may be made
unconditionally, or with the agreement of the chief officer of
the police for the police area concerned subject to
conditions. lt is noted the grant will be made subject to an
agreement as set out in the body of the report. The
performance of officers will have to be managed in
accordance with the terms of the agreement. Once the
scheme has been implemented the Council must ensure
that no part of the funds represents a 'profit' to any of the
recipients in order to avoid any indication of a procurement
activity.

6.

PL 191066 0

Page 33



7

8.

6.3

10.

11.

12.

Property Implications

There are no direct property implications in this report

KEY RISKS

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES - CREATING A LIFETIME OF
OPPORTUNITIES IN ENFIELD

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods

Sustain strong and heatthy communities

Build our local economy to create a thriving place

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

PERFORMANCE AND DATA IMPLICATIONS

10.1 Regular meetings between the Community Safety Manager and the contractor
ensure that perforÈnance measures and quality work is consistently delivered.

There is an Information Sharing Protocol compliant with GDPR, recently signed off at
the Safer and Stronger Community Board.

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

HR IMPLICATIONS

No HR implications

PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICAT¡ONS

I

13.

PL t9/066 0

Page 34



Background Papers

PL t9t066 0

Page 35



Page 36



Document is Restricted

Page 37
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 ENFIELD HOUSING DELIVERY ACTION PLAN (2019)
	PL 19.048 P Appendix
	Contents
	1. Introduction
	Background

	2. Enfield’s housing delivery
	Housing delivery
	Five-year housing land supply
	Housing monitoring
	Council-led direct delivery

	3. Methodology
	Housing Delivery
	3.1 This is the first Housing Action Plan for Enfield and it focuses on internal processes the Council is committed to undertake with the aim of accelerating housing delivery.  Future iterations of the Action Plan will include feedback from the privat...
	3.2 The first step to producing this Action Plan was to identify the key service areas that support housing delivery. This followed engagement with each service area to identify and analyse possible root causes for slower build out rates in Enfield.  ...
	3.3 Housing delivery, in particular delivery of affordable and specialist housing to meet pressing local need, is supported across several service areas and be categorised as either:
	A) Process or enabling or
	B) Direct delivery.
	3.4 These categories can be split into several services that the Council either support housing by assisting delivery through the private sector or deliver housing through Council-led housing regeneration, estate renewal programme and Council-owned pr...
	A) Process/enabling service areas

	3.5 The Planning Service comprising Development Management and Strategic Planning & Design facilitate the development process required to deliver housing.  Improved performance, resourcing and efficiency in both decision taking and plan making will en...
	3.6 In addition, there are statutory and non-statutory functions that sit within the Council’s Strategy and Policy Hub unit providing corporate support to deliver council-housing and affordable housing to improve housing numbers and tackle issues such...
	B) Direct delivery service areas

	3.7 The Council manages and owns a large portfolio of land and assets that support direct housing delivery. These service areas include: Housing Regeneration and Estate Renewal programmes that improve and optimise existing council-housing to maximise ...
	3.8 In addition, the Council own a portfolio of land and assets. This portfolio is managed by the Property Assets Team. The Council has recently approved the Strategic Assets Management Plan (SAMP), which covers all Council-owned property, except for ...
	3.9 To gain a better understanding of the housing situation in London, the Council attends regular meetings with other boroughs to discuss key matters and attempt to identify further relevant information and solutions to the problems. For example, the...

	4. Delivery rate analysis
	5. Supporting Plan/Strategies (existing and emerging)
	Enfield Corporate Plan 2018-2022
	Housing & Growth Strategy 2020 – 2030 (Draft)
	Preventing Homelessness and Rough Sleeping in Enfield 2020-2025 Strategy (Draft)
	New Local Plan 2036
	Edmonton Leeside Area Action Plan (ELAAP)
	S106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) review
	Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP)


	6 Key Actions
	7 Monitoring and Next Steps


	2 POLICE S92 CONTRACT
	KD4994 Part 2


